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          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good afternoon,

          3  and welcome to today's hearing on the State and

          4  Federal Legislation Committee. My name is Joel

          5  Rivera and I'm Chair of this Committee.

          6                 First I want to thank the members

          7  that are here on a timely fashion for your patience

          8  and for being here. As you understand, the Council

          9  is in a very anxious and very momentous point in

         10  time at this time.

         11                 We have four items on today's agenda.

         12  Before I do that I would like to introduce my

         13  colleagues. We have Council Member Maria Baez to my

         14  left from the Bronx; Councilwoman Helen Sears from

         15  Queens; and we have Council Member Erik Dilan from

         16  Brooklyn; and Council Member Joe Addabbo. And we

         17  have Council Member Lew Fidler, as well; and we have

         18  Council Member Hiram Monserrate. This is the biggest

         19  attendance we've had so far. Good.

         20                 We have four items on the agenda

         21  today. First we will consider two of the Mayor's

         22  messages on the City's red light camera program. One

         23  of these would extend the red light camera program

         24  currently in effect at 50 traffic lights until 2009.

         25                 The other red light camera item would
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          2  add an additional traffic lights at a current 50

          3  light program, and also extend the current program

          4  until 2008.

          5                 The Administration has asked us to

          6  pass Home Rules on both of these, because of the

          7  current program sunsets this year.

          8                 We will also consider two in-rems

          9  SLRs that support legislation to authorize the

         10  return of property taken for non-payment of taxes,

         11  if the original owners pay the back taxes.

         12                 Council Members Addabbo, in whose

         13  districts the properties are, both support the

         14  bills.

         15                 We may return after a brief recess if

         16  two items to alienate park land for subway

         17  constructions can be negotiated.

         18                 Is there anyone here to testify, or

         19  do any of my colleagues wish to discuss any of these

         20  items here today?

         21                 We do have a representative from DOT

         22  here. We have Andra Horsch, I believe. And we also

         23  have Michael Primeggia, Deputy Commissioner for

         24  Traffic Operations.

         25                 Thank you very much, ladies and

                                                            5

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  gents. Please turn on the microphones, state your

          3  name for the record and proceed with your testimony.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Good

          5  afternoon, Chairman Rivera, members of the

          6  Committee. I am Michael Primeggia. I'm the Deputy

          7  Commissioner for Traffic Operations in the

          8  Department of Transportation.

          9                 Thank you for providing me with this

         10  opportunity to state Commissioner Weinshall's

         11  support for a home rule message in connection with

         12  two bills pending before the State Legislature

         13  relating to the City's red light camera program.

         14                 The first bill, Senate 2472-A, would

         15  increase by 50 the number of intersections where red

         16  light cameras may be operated, as well as extend the

         17  program for 2008.

         18                 The second bill, Assembly 11663 and

         19  Senate 7599, would only serve to extend the program

         20  until 2009.

         21                 In its ten-year history the City's

         22  red light camera program has played a central role

         23  in our efforts to enhance public safety.

         24                 The program has proven to be an

         25  effective traffic safety measure that we believe
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          2  prevents injuries and loss of life resulting from

          3  accidents caused by red lights running.

          4                 Since its inception, hundreds of

          5  thousands of vehicles, including passenger vehicles,

          6  buses and taxicabs, have been caught going through

          7  red lights by these photo monitoring devices.

          8                 In 2003 alone, 292,614 violations

          9  were issued. All together, we have issued more than

         10  2 million summonses since the program began in 1993.

         11                 The installation and operation of red

         12  light cameras have served as an effective deterrent

         13  to motorists otherwise inclined to ignore traffic

         14  control signals.

         15                 Moreover, the deterrent effect in

         16  such camera, in such cameras, increases in direct

         17  correlation with an increase in the number of

         18  motorists aware of their placement.

         19                 This effect upon driver behavior has

         20  been demonstrable. In fact, over the course of the

         21  program, the average number of tickets or notices of

         22  liabilities, NOLs, issued per camera fell from 31 in

         23  1994 to 16 in 2003, a decrease of 52 percent.

         24                 This status suggests an increasing

         25  reluctance by motorists to risk running a red light.
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          2  It is because of the success of this program in

          3  enhancing public safety that has led to DOT's

          4  interest in seeking State legislation to increase

          5  the number of allowable intersections from 50 to

          6  100.

          7                 While this program has been very

          8  effective in reducing unsafe driving on the City

          9  streets, the current limitation of 50 cameras

         10  prevents us from a broader and much-needed

         11  application of this important public safety

         12  initiative.

         13                 It is important to remember that the

         14  goal of the cameras is not just to reduce red light

         15  running at those intersections where the camera is

         16  installed, but to change motorists' behavior

         17  wherever they drive.

         18                 The reality of the current program is

         19  that current state law allows us to operate the

         20  cameras at only four-tenths of one percent of all

         21  signalized intersections in the City. That is 50 out

         22  of 1,200 in 2,000 signalized intersections.

         23                 We believe that in order to truly

         24  impact the behavior of New York motorists, cameras

         25  need to be present at more locations throughout the
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          2  City.

          3                 As you know, the City has been

          4  lobbying the State Legislature for several years,

          5  for several years now, to increase the number of

          6  allowable cameras.

          7                 While the Senate has been supportive

          8  of our efforts, and, in fact, last year passed the

          9  bill before you today to increase the number of

         10  cameras, the Assembly continues to hold up this

         11  important legislation.

         12                 This year the passage of the bill by

         13  both houses take on greater importance, as without

         14  action by the State Legislature, the program will

         15  expire on December 1st.

         16                 It is because of this reality that we

         17  are seeking a Home Rule Message on both the bills to

         18  increase the number of allowable cameras, and one

         19  that merely continues the program.

         20                 Please know that we will continue to

         21  aggressively lobby the Assembly to allow us to

         22  install the additional cameras.

         23                 In conclusion, DOT requests that the

         24  Council grant both bills a Home Rule Message in

         25  support. In addition, any assistance you can provide
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          2  as members of the local legislative body, in

          3  reaching out and lobbying the members of the

          4  Assembly for the additional cameras would be greatly

          5  appreciated.

          6                 The additional cameras will go a long

          7  way towards increasing safety for motorists,

          8  passengers, pedestrians and bicyclists in the City's

          9  five boroughs.

         10                 Thank you, again, for this

         11  opportunity to testify to you today in support of

         12  these bills. At this time I would be happy to answer

         13  any questions that you may have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 First of all, we have Councilwoman

         17  Maria Baez, who would like to ask you a few

         18  questions.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Hi. Good

         20  afternoon.

         21                 I'm certainly in support of the Red

         22  Light Camera Program.

         23                 Do you presently have a breakdown for

         24  this Committee on where the actual, not the actual

         25  locations, but how were they broken down by borough?

                                                            10

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Yes,

          3  we do have that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Could you

          5  provide the Committee with --

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Sure.

          7  Right now Brooklyn has 13, the Bronx has six, Staten

          8  Island has five, Manhattan has eight and Queens has

          9  18.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: I'm sorry?

         11  Queens?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         13  Eighteen.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Eighteen.

         15                 Bronx has six, correct?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Can you just

         18  repeat them?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Sure.

         20  I'm sorry. Staten Island has five, the Bronx has

         21  six, Queens has 18, Brooklyn has 13, Manhattan has

         22  eight.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 Now we have Councilwoman Helen Sears

          3  who has a few questions.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

          5  much, Mr. Chair.

          6                 Before I just ask the question, I

          7  just want to say this bill works so well, and

          8  Assemblyman Ivan Lafayette, who is my Assemblyman,

          9  first introduced the first bill, and I have to tell

         10  you, when I got a ticket because I happened to get

         11  into the crosswalk and wasn't aware, when I got it,

         12  I said, wow. It was the first time I was every happy

         13  to get a ticket, because I saw that Ivan Lafayette's

         14  bill was working. So, that was one ticket I paid

         15  very well.

         16                 My question is where the other 50 are

         17  going. Have you allocated where the new ones will be

         18  going?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: We

         20  haven't completed a list of where the new locations

         21  would be.

         22                 There are several locations that are

         23  instrumented already that the cameras are not

         24  active, because the legislation currently only

         25  allows us to have 50 locations active at any one
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          2  time.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Right.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: We do

          5  have other locations that are instrumented and could

          6  be brought on line very quickly.

          7                 There are other locations that we are

          8  continually studying to determine which are the new

          9  locations once we get the legislation, we can

         10  instrument.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So, do you

         12  anticipate that with that new legislation that you

         13  will be able to have those 50 additional ones within

         14  the year? Or will the monies for them have to be

         15  rolled over, which is really not a capital expense,

         16  I don't think.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: We can

         18  have many locations, probably as many as half of

         19  them, up in a very short order. Because as I

         20  mentioned there are locations currently instrumental

         21  that we are not able to activate on a regular basis.

         22                 These are locations where we

         23  currently can shift our operations in the event that

         24  we have a failure at a particular location in some

         25  of the instrumentation.
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          2                 The other locations we believe can be

          3  brought on board in short order thereafter.

          4  Certainly within the year we would think that we

          5  would have them all ready to go.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Okay,

          7  thank you.

          8                 When you have those other locations,

          9  could you provide them to the Chair for this

         10  Committee?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: The

         12  borough breakdown?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Sure.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Now we have Hiram Monserrate, and

         21  Council Member Erik Dilan, then back to Councilwoman

         22  Maria Baez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chair.

         25                 Commissioner, I have a couple of
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          2  short questions. What's the criteria for a camera to

          3  be placed at an intersection?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: The

          5  Chief one we use is the violation history. So, we

          6  actually send people out and measure whether or not

          7  that location suffers from motorists habitually

          8  violating the red signal.

          9                 So, we collect traffic data in terms

         10  of the number of vehicles going that use the

         11  intersection, and then the number of vehicles that

         12  violate the red signal. We look at the percentages

         13  of that. That's certainly the chief criteria.

         14                 We also look at the geometry of the

         15  location. Clearly, in order for the camera to work,

         16  the geometry has to be within certain thresholds.

         17  Line of sight has to be good, the grades have to be

         18  acceptable, the curvature of the roadway needs to be

         19  sort of routine.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: The

         21  summones that have been issued already at that

         22  intersection are taken into account?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: I'm

         24  sorry.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: The
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          2  summonses that are issued --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Not so

          4  much the summonses because we don't keep that data,

          5  the Department of Transportation doesn't keep the

          6  data. The data that we do use is the number of

          7  motorists observed violating the red signal.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay, I

          9  would just want a little bit more clarity as to the

         10  process that's used to establish -- is it written

         11  somewhere? Is there a written policy?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: The

         13  policy, it's not so much of a policy that's written,

         14  but what I can certainly provide in short order is

         15  the steps we take in order to evaluate a condition

         16  for inclusion in the program.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Let me

         18  just express what my concern would be. How is it

         19  that Manhattan has eight and Queens has --

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         21  Eighteen.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: That's a

         23  disparity there, and I think that across the board,

         24  I think the cameras have been very effective, at the

         25  same time we want to make sure they're equally
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          2  distributed among the five boroughs.

          3                 How many summonses in a fiscal year

          4  are issued in total by the program?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: In

          6  this year there were 292 -- notices of liability,

          7  292 --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: How many?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: In

         10  this fiscal year the number of notices of liability

         11  issued were 292,614 --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: 292,000

         13  roughly?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: --

         15  614.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Do you

         17  have a dollar amount tagged to that?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: One

         19  second.

         20                 Not for this individual year, but for

         21  the ten years of the program.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Like I

         23  wasn't that good at math, but if you gave out

         24  292,000 and each one was $50 --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Well,

                                                            17

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  if everyone paid.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Since

          5  the program started, we've collected almost $30

          6  million in a ten-year period.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thirty

          8  million.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Net

         10  revenue.

         11                 So, let me just give you in the

         12  ten-year period. The total revenues collected were

         13  98, almost 99 million.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Ninety-one

         15  million?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Almost

         17  99 million.

         18                 The total expenses were a little over

         19  69 million, leaving a net revenue of almost 30

         20  million in the ten-year period.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay,

         22  thank you, Mr. Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 Now we have Council Member Erik Dilan
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          2  and Councilwoman Maria Baez to follow.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Council Member

          4  Monserrate basically asked the questions that I

          5  intended to ask. But I will say, is it your intent

          6  then in the future to provide more balance, should

          7  this body and the assembly grant the additional 50;

          8  is there an intent on the Department to provide

          9  balance among the boroughs for the 50 new lights --

         10  cameras?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: What

         12  we seek to do is not to balance geographically the

         13  numbers of cameras, but to balance out the locations

         14  where we observe the red light running problem.

         15                 The number of signalized

         16  intersections varies by borough. Queens and Brooklyn

         17  has the most physical number of intersections that

         18  are signalized, and so one would expect it to have a

         19  little bit more.

         20                 Geometry, as I mentioned, at some of

         21  the intersections preclude, some of the locations

         22  may preclude insulation of the cameras. For example,

         23  the cameras have an ability to pick up a number of

         24  lanes, three to four lanes, and so that's what we

         25  typically look at, three to four lanes of the
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          2  approach to look at.

          3                 But, again, we don't exclude a

          4  geographic location from the criteria, but what we

          5  are looking at, meaning that we don't exclude any

          6  borough from consideration.

          7                 What we do look at, however, is

          8  locations where chiefly where the number of

          9  opportunities, motorists taking an opportunity to

         10  run the red lights is at a high level.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: You also said

         12  at this time the Department has no plans as to where

         13  the additional 50 lights were to be installed?

         14  Cameras. I keep saying lights, but cameras.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Right,

         16  cameras.

         17                 The specific locations I can't tell

         18  you sitting right here. I will tell you, though,

         19  right now that currently I have more than 50

         20  locations instrumented. I can give you the -- I

         21  could give you the geographic breakdown. I don't

         22  have it with me today but I can provide it to the

         23  Chair, of the additional instrumented locations

         24  where they exist, in addition to the 50 that are up

         25  and running every day.

                                                            20

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: The problem I

          3  have is that, one, it does seem to be more fully

          4  weighted toward Brooklyn and Queens, and I would

          5  suggest that the Department of Transportation would

          6  think that the worst drivers are in Brooklyn in

          7  Queens. I don't know if that's absolutely true. I

          8  couldn't speak to it. I don't have that insight or

          9  knowledge.

         10                 It also says to me that most of the

         11  revenue being generated by the Department of

         12  Transportation is coming on the back of Brooklynites

         13  and members of the County of Queens, and that's

         14  something of great concern to me.

         15                 This could be a potential problem for

         16  me, so I'm going to have to listen more and see how

         17  I feel.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay, now we have

         19  Council Member Maria Baez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Hi. Deputy

         21  Commissioner, just going back, and I understand, and

         22  I have a concern with the way that the survey is

         23  done, and the implementation of these red light

         24  cameras, and you said that it's based on the

         25  violations, the violators of the red signals; is
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          2  that the only criteria that you face where the red

          3  lights go?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: No,

          5  the cameras are -- as I mentioned, there's a series

          6  of criteria, the chief one in terms of the traffic

          7  data we collect, is the number of violations, that's

          8  a percentage of the number of vehicles that are used

          9  in the intersection. But we look at other data as

         10  well, and as I said, I'll certainly provide that to

         11  the Chair, what the criteria, all the criteria is.

         12  We look at accident statistics, for example, we look

         13  at the geometry. A lot of the locations come to us

         14  from community input, either from the elected

         15  officials, yourselves or your colleagues or your

         16  community groups in the neighborhood.

         17                 When we get a request, we evaluate

         18  the intersection and whether or not it has the type

         19  of problem that's being perceived.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: So, you're

         21  saying the criteria is also based on accidents at a

         22  certain intersection and so forth. And you also have

         23  the input from the community board/elected

         24  officials, correct?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Or
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          2  community groups or others?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Or community

          4  groups organization.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

          6  Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: So, I don't

          8  understand, why is it that just in comparison to the

          9  other boroughs, that for example, the Bronx only

         10  have six. And I'm sure that you have the input from

         11  the community board, the organizations, the elected

         12  officials, so I guess I have a comment and a concern

         13  that we really need to review how this study is done

         14  and see how we can work with DOT as a partner to

         15  ensure that these red camera lights go evenly across

         16  the boroughs.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: We

         18  would be happy to, again, to share each of the

         19  criterias that we use, what protocols and steps we

         20  follow in order to make the determination if we

         21  believe a red light camera would be a good thing for

         22  that particular intersection, and we'll certainly

         23  take into account any concern, if there are other

         24  locations you would like us to evaluate.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Council Member

          3  Hiram Monserrate.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: A little

          5  bit more clarity.

          6                 Are you saying that accident-prone

          7  intersections, is that one of the criteria?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: It is

          9  one of the -- it is some of the statistics we look

         10  at.

         11                 As I mentioned, the chief traffic

         12  data we collect is the number of vehicles using the

         13  intersection, and we compare that to the number of

         14  vehicles found to be violating the red signal.

         15                 And we clearly look at that

         16  percentage, in terms of the total volume, going

         17  through that intersection by approach and then a

         18  number of vehicles violating.

         19                 One of the things that brings an

         20  intersection to our attention is history of crashes,

         21  vehicular crashes, particularly right angle

         22  collisions, which are the types of collisions that

         23  are caused by motorists not obeying the signal. And

         24  so that's one of the data that we also look at in

         25  terms of going out to evaluate a location.
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          2                 As I mentioned, we also get requests,

          3  inputs from the public in various forms, either

          4  directly from the elected representatives, or from

          5  community groups or from individuals.

          6                 So, all of that goes into whether or

          7  not we should evaluate this intersection for

          8  treatment.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay, two

         10  things. Let me just say, I'm a bit surprised at, I

         11  know that the New York City Police Department has

         12  police officers specifically assigned to red light

         13  traffic signal enforcement, and that that would seem

         14  to be pretty obtainable by DOT to be able to peruse

         15  to establish some of the intersections that might

         16  have been problematic.

         17                 And secondly, I think I can probably

         18  speak to the benefit of my colleagues, I think the

         19  criteria, or the policy written out, would be a much

         20  better thing for us to be able to read and digest.

         21  And I think what you're outlining is a little bit

         22  ambiguous, and I think that a little bit more

         23  definition would be helpful to us.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: Sure.

         25  And as I said, that's not a problem for us.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay, seeing no

          4  other questions from my colleagues, I'm going to be

          5  urging an aye vote on all items before us here

          6  today.

          7                 And if the clerk can call the roll,

          8  we're going to be asking for one more member from

          9  the Committee to come by. I know Council Member

         10  McMahon has a very large hearing next door.

         11                 Can the clerk call the roll.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I vote aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Permission to

         18  explain my vote, please?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Sure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Thank you.

         21                 While as I stated in the beginning,

         22  while I certainly think the red light camera program

         23  is something that all communities benefit from, I

         24  strongly urge this Committee to really work with DOT

         25  to ensure that the red light cameras are put, are
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          2  distributed fairly throughout the City, especially

          3  in communities of color where you have a host of

          4  accidents, and I think these red light cameras would

          5  also benefit to that.

          6                 So, in saying that, I'm voting aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Mr. Chairman,

          9  may I have a moment to explain my vote?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: I'm going to

         12  vote aye on all these measures, but, you know, I do

         13  want to suggest to the Department of Transportation,

         14  that they also find balance.

         15                 And the reason for balance, for my

         16  perspective, is a little bit different from my

         17  colleague's, and that's because, you know, I also

         18  understand that these cameras generate a lot of

         19  revenue for the City and for the Department of

         20  Transportation, and I find it to be unfair that two

         21  out of the five boroughs carry most of the weight,

         22  as far as providing that revenue to the City.

         23                 Now, granted, you know, people who

         24  run red lights should be caught, should be given the

         25  flexibility through cameras to go after traffic
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          2  violators, but clearly their traffic violators in

          3  each and every borough of the City, and to target

          4  only the traffic violators in the Boroughs of

          5  Brooklyn and Queens to me seem to be a little

          6  unfair. So, I will just ask that as you implement

          7  the next 50, to keep that under consideration, and I

          8  vote aye on all.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye on all.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Monserrate.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I vote aye

         15  on all, except agenda Item Number 3, which I vote no

         16  to.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of seven in

         18  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         19  abstentions, all items are adopted, except for

         20  agenda Item Number 3, Preconsidered M, which is

         21  adopted by a vote of six in the affirmative, one in

         22  the negative and no abstentions.

         23                 Council members, please sign the

         24  Committee report.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: At this point in
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          2  time I'll be calling the Committee hearing into

          3  recess.

          4                 (Recess taken.)

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Sears.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Welcome, again,

          8  to the State and Federal Legislation Committee. My

          9  name is Joel Rivera. I'm the Chair of this

         10  Committee.

         11                 We will be reconvening our State and

         12  Fed hearing from earlier today. We have two new

         13  items on the agenda.

         14                 We will also hear two preconsidered

         15  items authorizing the City to alienate certain park

         16  lands for subway construction. One of these bills

         17  would authorize the City to alienate and grant

         18  easements over park land for South Ferry subway

         19  construction.

         20                 The other relates to alienating park

         21  land in East Harlem, Upper East Side area of the

         22  Second Avenue Subway, and can be negotiated.

         23                 We will now ask if there are any

         24  witnesses to speak before us to testify here today?

         25                 Seeing none, I will ask if there is
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          2  any comments or questions on behalf of the

          3  Committee?

          4                 Seeing none, I would urge an aye

          5  vote, and the clerk can call the roll. A very quick

          6  meeting.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I vote aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Just, Mr.

         11  Chair, I want to say I'm glad that on both, they

         12  address the park alienation issue on both, and I

         13  vote aye on all.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Mr. Chairman,

         21  I will just ask a moment of leave to explain my

         22  vote.

         23                 And just to state how critically

         24  important these actions are. I know that the Second

         25  Avenue subway is something the people of New York

                                                            30

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  have dreamed of for years, and this moves it one

          3  step closer. That's fine.

          4                 On the other hand, the South Ferry is

          5  a reality. The money has just been put back into

          6  place after a long battle which was fought for

          7  whatever reason, but this is just such a good thing

          8  for the people of Staten Island and for the people

          9  of New York City, and I think it's wonderful that we

         10  in the City of New York do whatever we can to make

         11  sure that this project which will be funded by the

         12  federal government happens.

         13                 And we thank you for your leadership

         14  on this, Mr. Chairman, and I vote aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Permission to

         17  explain my vote?

         18                 I just wish to reiterate the

         19  importance of the ferry, and I don't think that

         20  what's happening should be compromised. I vote aye

         21  on the issues before, but to please keep in the

         22  forefront that the ferry is very crucial.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I also note that

         25  Council Member Alan Gerson would like to say a few
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          2  words.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Very few, Mr.

          4  Chair, in the interest of time. I just want to thank

          5  you and my colleagues who are members of this

          6  Committee for your vote.

          7                 I'm in support of the South Ferry

          8  project. It's important to note that this is a

          9  combined South Ferry Battery Park project that is

         10  part of the agreement reached with the leadership of

         11  this Council, our Speaker, Council Member Rivera,

         12  but also Sheldon Silver from the Assembly, and the

         13  Administration.

         14                 There will be sufficient funds, not

         15  only to refurbish the part of the park, which, the

         16  part of Battery Park which will be torn up for the

         17  project, but also to make several other major

         18  important enhancements which will wind up with the

         19  end result not only of a better subway station, but

         20  a better park for all New Yorkers, from all parts of

         21  our City to enjoy.

         22                 So, I thank you very much and I

         23  certainly will urge this adoption at the full

         24  Stated, as I have at this Committee.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of seven in

          3  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          4  abstentions. Both items are adopted.

          5                 Council members, please sign the

          6  Committee reports.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We're going to

          9  hold the vote open for five minutes for any other

         10  members that may want to come in and vote.

         11                 So, that we'll be adjourned.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 4:40 p.m.)
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